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THE DEGANWY DOCIKSTORY

Although there has been a dock or landing stage on the River Conwy at Deganwy in North
Wales since the 12" century, the modern story really began when one railway company tried to
break the monopoly of another in transporting the massive amount of high-quality roofing slate
qguarried at Blaenau Ffestiniog to a port and thence by sea to the towns and cities of Britain and
beyond. It is a fascinating story of cut-throat business rivalry and risk-taking when the 19"
century Industrial Revolution was at its peak, but unfortunately the Conwy Valley line between
Blaenau Ffestiniog and the dock at Deganwy never fulfilled the high expectations of the railway
owners who built it.

However, some 120 years after being built, the dock was transformed by the successive
activities of two entrepreneurs into the new Deganwy Quay of the 21% century.

1 The Llandudno Branch Line

A single track railway was built from Llandudno Junction on the main Chester to Holyhead line to
the growing seaside resort of Llandudnoby t he St . Georgeds Hamiour & |
opened on 1 October 1858. Initially there was no station at Deganwy but, soon after the line
was built, the railway company submitted applications to Parliament for a wharf and pier close to
the site of the present station. The plans showed a pier approximately 25 yards out into the
estuary but it is difficult to find evidence of such a construction, and none is shown on a map
dated September 1871. It seems unlikely a railway wharf would be required at Deganwy at that
time because from 1852 onwards there was a small railway dock known as New York Sidings on
the Cob at Conwy - next to the tubular bridge just across the river from Conwy Castle. This dock
was originally used to carry stone from quarries at Penmaenmawr and slate, fish and other
goods from the Conwy Valley.

The St. George6s Har bour and Rail way Company had financi
1862 the Llandudno branch line was leased to the London and North Western Railway
Company (LNWR) and vested in that company in 1873.

The first station at Deganwy was erected alongside the single track in 1866 and then rebuilt
some ten years later when the line was widened to double track. Throughout this period a single
track railway was being built up the Conwy Valley from Llandudno Junction, first to Llanrwst
(1863) and then to Betws-y-Coed (1868) by the LNWR.

2 Railway Mania
As the Industrial Revolution gathered pace throughout the 19" century, the need for slate grew
rapidly and North Wales had the biggest slate quarries in the world. In the years between 1801
and 1881 the number of houses in England and Wales rose from 1.6 million to 5.2 million and
slate roofs were used on many of them, as well as on new factory buildings. At its peak North
Wales was producing half a million tons of slate a year and employing almost 17,000 men. The
centre of the slate quarrying and mining industry was Blaenau Ffestiniog and much of the
finished product was being transported from the town by rail, most notably by the narrow gauge
Ffestiniog Railway to the port of Porthmadog - 14 miles away. There was immense competition
between railway companies in the late 19" century and the directors of the LNWR were
3



determined to corner the market in the carriage of B| a e n supefios blue/grey slate to both
home and overseas markets. To reach the slate town they decided to extend the Conwy Valley
line for 12 miles beyond Betws-y-Coed, along the Lledr Valley and by tunnelling through the
extremely hard rock of Moel Dyrnogydd. They did all this at great expense despite having no
assurances as to how much traffic they could expect from the hard-headed slate quarry owners.

The single track railway line up the Conwy Valley was standard gauge (4ft. 8%zins.) as far as
Betws-y-Coed but, when work began on the Blaenau extension in 1875, it was constructed in
narrow gauge ( 1 f t . 1 thé) sames sizp of track used by the slate quarry wagons. The
original LNWR plan was for finished slate at the quarries and mines to be loaded into the smaller
narrow-gauge wagons and taken first to their railhead at Blaenau Ffestiniog, then along their
new track to Betws-y-Coed. It was from here that the wagons would, it was planned, be taken
along a proposed North Wales Narrow Gauge Railway system linking many of the slate-
producing areas with existing ports. Unfortunately, this ambitious idea of building a narrow-
gauge network linking Betws-y-Coed to Beddgelert and Capel Curig, and down to seaports, was
abandoned in 1876; so the LNWR had to find an alternative arrangement.

When the North Wales Narrow Gauge Railway Company
scrapped its intended link to Betws-y-Coed, the LNWR had
already done much construction work on its single narrow-
gauge track up the Lledr Valley and through the mountain to
Blaenau Ffestiniog. Not to be deterred, the LNWR directors
decided to widen the entire track to take standard-gauge all
the way to their station and trans-shipment yards at Blaenau.
: : The extended line was finally completed in 1879 and the

e Blaenau tunnel was the longest single track tunnel in the UK,
1885L.N.W.Rnarrow gauge slate quarry wagon at over two miles Iong.

For a few years, the slate from the quarries and mines had to be manually transferred from the
small quarry wagons onto the larger standard-gauge wagons in dedicated LNWR sidings at
Blaenau. But the determined LNWR directors had a bigger plan in their minds and this is where
the Deganwy Dock Story really began.

Although B r i t mil netéask had expanded rapidly by 1880, many goods for the home market
were transported by sea because it was considerably cheaper than rail at that time. Such was
the case for the North Wales slate industry, and most quarries and mines in the area needed a
port, not only for the British market, but also to meet the increasing demand from overseas
customers. The port most conveniently serving the Blaenau Ffestiniog area was Porthmadog,
and other slate producing areas used smaller ports on the mainland side of the Menai Straits. A
serious drawback of these ports, according to a document produced by a steamship company at
the time, was that their efficiency depended greatly upon the state of the tide. It was claimed
that vessels could be delayed in dock for up to two weeks at Porthmadog and Bangor. The
LNWR was keen to have a dock not dependent upon tidesandf or whi ch it didnot
harbour dues, so it decided to create a better facility on the River Conwy where, in the 1880s,
the estuary was not silted to the extent that it became later. In fact, in Victorian times, the
Conwy was navigable by steamers as far upstream as Trefriw, only two miles short of Llanrwst.



3 The Building of the Dock

It was in 1882, three years after the opening of the Blaenau extension, that the LNWR finalised
its plans for building a 20 acre dock at Deganwy with the intention of centralising all their sea-
going slate traffic. Work commenced in 1883 and an interesting article in the North Wales
Chronicle dated 14 November 1885 details how well it was constructed.

A huge pier was built out into
the river using quarry waste

RIVER CONWY

ananan

as well as substancial earth- PR
fill which came from the il

opening out of 135 yards of h———
the Belmont tunnel entrance U =
close to the railway station at | T

Bangor, in order to create

room there for better Dock BASIN 7
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the river was 220 yards long and a tidal dock was created having an area of almost two acres.
Greenheart timber piles were driven deep into the river bed and planked behind with the same
material i a very hard, dense South American wood highly resistant to fungi and used
extensively on marine constructions around the world. The piles and planking were backed by a
20 feet thick dry stone wall. On the inner sloping sides of the pier 18 inch thick stone was used
from local quarries and from Holywell. The river bed was dredged to approximately the same
depth all round the pier to allow ships to berth alongside the vertical riverside wall and at five
wooden jetties on the sloping sides.

The dockland area was a network of standard and narrow-gauge railways with five sidings, three
cranes and a signal box on the Station Road side of the level crossing contained a large,
manually-operated wheel to open the crossing gates. The dock even boasted its own sawmill.
The first consignment of goods from the new dock, estimated to have cost £44,346, was loaded
on 1 October 1885 although it was not fully operational until early the following year.

At the cutting mills of the quarries and mines around Blaenau Ffestiniog the roofing slate was
cut into a wide variety of sizes ranging from 16
Myyp [®boz owd G5S3ky4 inches by 8 inches (known as Second Ladies) up

with three fully loaded slate quarry wagons

to 36 inches by 20 inches (known as Kings). The
finished slates were then tightly loaded into small
narrow-gauge open wagons, and taken to

fiex change atBlaghaunHlere dthe small
quarry wagons were positioned transversely,

three abreast, onto cleverly adapted drop-sided
standard-gauge wagons, known as i Deganwy
Fl atThsoi.pi g gy b ada kavingwtee \slate

from quarry to dock reduced the problem of
damage caused by trans-shipment en-route.




In the year the dock opened, 1885, the LNWR built 50 of the special Deganwy Flat transporter
wagons and 150 of the smaller quarry wagons at their Earlstown works near Warrington. Each
guarry wagon could carry two to three tons of slate, and in 1887 the LNWR built a further 100.
(The 1887 wagons can be recognised by the addition of a large handbrake on one side.) The
method of getting the smaller wagons off the host transporter wagons at Deganwy was simply
by pushing them across to a raised platform and then manhandling them along narrow-gauge
tracks by means of turntables and a ramp down to ground level, for storage or direct to shipside.

Despite all the subsequent 21% century
redevelopment of Deganwyds

dock, evidence still remains of the old
works. The three harbour walls used by
the original ships are essentially the same.
Two LNWR dockside cranes have been
renovated in their original positions, and
several large capstans can be seen.
Wooden upright supports for a few of the
old loading piers are still in evidence and
original timbers now serve as gateposts
for a number of the houses and apartment
blocks i a tasteful combination of old and new.

4 The Early Years

Slate left Deganwy for many places including Manchester, the Isle of Man, Ireland, Cardiff,
Portsmouth and Yarmouth. Germany was a major importer of slate from North Wales before the
First World War and Deganwy sent cargoes to Hamburg as well as to Copenhagen.

Whilst the storage and movement of slate were the main functions of Deganwy, various other
goods were carried to and from the dock. In particular, timber from Scandinavia was imported
during this time, in such quantities as to take up half the wharfage space.

Perhaps surprisingly for a fishing area, very little fish was landed at Deganwy, although in 1893
an interesting experiment was carried out. For one month, part of the fleet of Milford Haven
trawlers landed 400 tons of fish at the dock because it was considerable cheaper to transport
the catch by rail to the main markets of London, Liverpool and Manchester than from the distant
south-west Wales port. A news agency report in several provincial newspapers was headlined
ADeganwy t o bec ome whchwWdald reguire Ge buitdisgoofice storage facilities
and about 180 homes for the fishery workers and their families who would move from Milford
Haven. The plans did not materialise due to the work required to make the dock and estuary
suitable for fishing trawlers at all states of the tide, particularly throughout the winter months.

As the slate quarries and mines up in the mountains became more mechanised they needed an
increasing amount of coal to power their steam locomotives and winding engines. Some of this
was brought by sea from Cardiff, Swansea, Llanelly and Newport to Deganwy where, from 1898
onwards it was loaded into 50 specially constructed narrow gauge coal wagons similar in size to
the quarry slate wagons, but with high solid wooden sides and ends. These special coal



wagons were pushed three abr whilstook thent up the Coewy i De g a n

Valley to their destinations.

Most of the ships using Deganwy at this time were small, at less than 100 tons, and there was a
developing trend towards transporting slate in larger vessels which could not easily navigate the
comparatively shallow Conwy estuary. In the years between 1886 and 1914 only 1,507 vessels
used the wharfs of Deganwy Dock i most of these in the period soon after it opened. The tail-off
in business over the years was severe, as evidenced by the fact there were only 27 arrivals in
1910 and 9 in 1913.

Towards the end of the 19" century the demand for Welsh slate began to decline due to higher
labour costs, importation of cheaper, poor quality slate from abroad (notably France) and
competition from clay roofing-tile manufacturers in England. Ironically, the high-point in the
production of Welsh slate had been reached in 1878, shortly before the LNWR embarked on its
expensive civil engineering projects at each end of the Conwy Valley line.

Despite one or two peaks and troughs in slate production, the fact became clear that Deganwy
Dock missed out on the real boom years. By 1914 the Welsh slate industry had lost half its
capacity and the railway dock at Deganwy was working at only a fraction of its potential.
According to historians it had been built at least ten years too late and was a monument to the
greed and over-ambition of the London and North Western Railway Company.

5 The Boat Building Years

After 1918, the decline in dock traffic continued and

ceased altogetheri n t he 1 9 @Hhichtime d new i
industry began at the dock; boat-building. The first boat-

builders were Cyril Williams of Williams and Parkinson

(later to become Williams and Nixon Ltd.) and Stan

Riley. Cyril Williams built yachts and cruisers to order

and, in fact, one of his yachts, i S e abui# w4936

for Liverpool solicitor Oswald Smith, took part in the

famous small-boats evacuation of Dunkirk in 1940.

Ri | ey 6s -kmewn tocally éof Huilding three of the

special sailing boats known as Conway One Design

(CODs) in the years 1935 and 1936. A total of 16 CODs were built between 1928 and 1989, to a
design specifically made for racing in the waters of Conwy Bay, a n d Ril eyds
Deganwy constructed the 8", 9" and 10" boats named fKingfisherd fMargaret 20and fAcushlaa

éSeamew - built at Deganwy Dock in 1936

After the Second World War and railway
nationalisation, Deganwy Dock served
another useful purpose. British Rail used
the dock to store vintage railway coaches
that were at the end of their useful life but
kept for the formation of special land
cruise trains. In the summer months

; = = excursion trains, which had brought
Railway carriagestandingin sidings on the dodk the mid1960s hundreds of day-trippers to LIandudno,
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were temporarily parked in the sidings until they were required again. On occasions the sidings
were used to park the Royal Train when members of the Royal Family visited North Wales and
the then British Rail manager for North Wales, Ifor Williams, fondly recalls how Royal Trains
would arrive early in the morning after an overnight journey until moving on to their final
destination.

Boat-building continued alongside all this railway activity and a particularly colourful character

arrived at the dock in 1959. He was James Wharram who had designed his first offshore

cruising catamaran six years earlier - when catamarans were hardly known - and he went on to

develop ocean-going Polynesian-type craft. He b ui | t the 40 foot cat amar a
Caribbean and sailed it across the Atlantic (via New York) to beach it at Deganwy where he set

up shop. His catamaran designs were relatively simple to construct and he marketed plans

mainly for the self-build mariner. He preferred sailing the ocean to boat-building and travelled

the world in his catamarans, almost always with a young female crew. The exploits of James

Wharram would fill a book and he became a Fellow of the Royal Geographical Society for his

pioneering work and his lectures about the history of the origins of canoe-craft in the Pacific.

By the year 1970 the railway lines at Deganwy Dock had been removed, and the place had
fallen into decay. The tidal dock basin was silted up and many of the original buildings were in
disrepair. Level crossing access to the site on foot was over a ladder-stile from the main road
and, for vehicles, through a metal gate opened and closed by a crossing attendant. The
neglected site was out of keeping amongst the beautiful and historic surroundings of the Conwy
estuary i an area where tourism was becoming the principal industry.

After 1974 changes lay ahead, when the Deganwy Dock story was dominated by two
entrepreneurs who, separately, took the development through to what it became shortly after the
start of the 21 century.

6 The (Deganwy Yacht ServicesoEra

Int he 197006s, & lyaunmg| bailkling B
contractor, originally from Buckinghamshire, had
settled in the area and, being keen on sailing,
purchased Er i ¢ T umarnine r éngineering
business called Deganwy Yacht Services Ltd. on
part of the dock leased from British Rail on a short
term contract. Over the next ten years Mr Bell
purchased the leases of other portions of land on B
the dock and eventually bought the land outright ’-j e,

from the railway company. e

At the time when Mr Bell acquired Deganwy Yacht Services there were around 100 boats
berthed in the dock or stored on the hard-standing around it. As other parts of the dock were
acquired, he cleared the old buildings and made space available for more boat storage,
complete with a toilet block, security lighting and manned patrols. The expansion of the boat
storage side of his business was helped in the late 1970s by marine insurers deeming it was too
risky for them to insure boats moored to buoys out in the estuary over the stormy winter months
- and Deganwy was the only boat storage dock on the North Wales coast east of Bangor.
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These were prosperous times for Mr Bell because during the winter months in the earlyl1 9 8 0 6 s
he had at least 500 boats either moored in the dock or placed on the hard-standing areas.

Regrettably for Mr Bel |l 6s busi nédue,to uneltpected pr os pe
circumstances. The new A55 dual carriageway road was being constructed between Chester

% and Holyhead and a method had to be found of
crossing the river to avoid the old walled town of
Conwy. The solution decided upon was to
construct an immersed-tube road tunnel
beneath the river i the first of its kind in the U.K.
Three plans were considered for a route and
one of them would have obliterated Deganwy
Dock because the eastern approach cutting and
tunnel entrance were through the wharf itself.
Just as importantly it would have destroyed the
quiet charm of the village of Deganwy. In the
event, the route decided upon was half a mile further up-river.

When the news about the building of a road tunnel became public and the sailing community
realised they would have severely limited access within the estuary for five years, the boat
storage business slumped disastrously down to approximately 30 boats in 1985.

At the same time as the boat storage business
was declining, these were also difficult days for
those small units based on the dock which relied
upon the boating industry. Mr Bell had to reduce
the workforce of his own business, Deganwy Yacht
Services, from nine down to only himself.

Other businesses operating on the dock at this time
wer e Richard Wil |l iams

Williams & Nixon (boat builders), Tuxfords (roofing
tile storage), Bonspiel Curling Stone Company Ltd
(manufacturers of curling stones from granite
guarried in the Lleyn Peninsula) and Don Upright, motor mechanic.

Heavy seas breaking ovitie boat storage yard circa 1988

The decision to build the road tunnel i from 1986 to 1991 i caused a longer term problem for Mr
Bell because the civil engineering contractors agreed to construct a new harbour on Conwy
Morfa across the river from Deganwy. The huge man-made casting basin used to make the
concrete and steel box sections of the tunnel would, afterwards, be transformed into a 500 berth
yachting marina. It seemed that a large modern gated marina at Conwy which could store boats
in the water all year round would leave little business for a 100 year old silted-up tidal dock.

In order to survive in business Mr Bell had to make a strategic change of direction. He did this
by talking to local authority planners about a marina and housing development on the dock.
With the backing of house builders, McBryde Homes, he submitted plans for a 236 berth marina
and 90 homes but this was turned down by the Welsh Office in 1987.



In 1997 Conway Yacht Club announced
an ambitious plan to turn the dock and
the surrounding area to the south into a
marine lake and sail training facility, but
the scheme failed to attract grant-aid
and Conwy Council turned down a
request to fund a feasibility study.

Once again the site remained
neglected as evidenced by a council
meeting report in the North Wales
Weekly News dated 5 November 1998
describing it a s ilone of
eyesores on the North Wales coast and
a blot on the estuaryo .

Viewfrom the Vardre at the time dhe building of the A55 Road Tunmetirca 1988

Mr Bell did more work on his dock regeneration plans in conjunction with Colwyn Bay based
architects, Bowen Dann Knox, and he finally received planning consent for 70 homes and a
pontooned marina, conditional upon a continental-style barrier level crossing being in place
before any residential properties were occupied. Interestingly, Conwy Council, prior to this
application, had carried out a £20,000 feasibility study into what use the derelict Deganwy Dock
could be put and reached the same conclusion as Mr Bell; a marina and housing development.

Based on property prices in the mid-1990s the
viability of the project was finely balanced. The
enormous cost associated with constructing a
new marina, a new level crossing and widening
the main road outside the entrance to the site
had to be largely met by the sale of the
residential properties.

It was around this time that Mr Bell met up with
another businessman who would, in due course,
take the development plans from drawing board
through to fruition.

Thepre-2001level crossingind crossing S S LISNDa NE

7 21stCentury Regeneration

A building development company, which had business interests mainly in the north-west of
England, with ex-Bolton Wanderers footballer Alan Waldron as Managing Director, recognised
the potential of the 20 acre site as an outstanding location for the higher-end property market.
Planning consent had already been obtained by Mr Bell for a marina together with residential
use and, with property prices starting to rise sharply at the end of the 1990s, the viability of the
project was beginning to look more attractive.

Mr  Wal dr o n § kifetime Pngjeats btd., agreed to purchase the land and applied for a
hotel to be added to the old dock site which would become known as Deganwy Quay. The

10



purchase of the land was completed in 2001 and shortly afterwards the local authority gave
planning permission for the hotel.

There was mixed reaction to the proposed development from local residents. Some homes
overlooking the estuary would lose their view of Conwy Castle and there were doubts about the
wisdom of building on dockland with a history of flooding.

Not unexpectedly, rumours were rife and there was a fear the development would simply
become a weekend retreat for people who wanted holiday homes, with no long-term benefit for
the village of Deganwy and the surrounding area.

On the other hand, local authority planning consent had been given and there was support from
both the EU Objective One funding and the Welsh Development Agency who contributed
significantly towards the cost of the hotel and land reclamation, in addition to the main funding
from Bank of Scotland.

The original plan was for a gated community comprising a 226 berth marina, 16 detached
houses, 18 townhouses, 37 apartments and, if planning consent could be obtained, a 74
bedroom luxury hotel. Some of the facilities for the hotel comprising a restaurant, health and
leisure suite were intended to be housed in a separate building known as The Gatehouse (now
called The Anchorage) near the main entrance to the development. As construction work
progressed there were to be a number of modifications to these plans.

8 New Construction Commences

A temporary manually-operated level crossing i with traffic lights - was built in late 2001
approximately 200 metres south of the original crossing on Glan y Mor Road to allow heavy
plant to access the site, and work began on the major civil engineering project. The following
five years saw the construction of the marina, the houses and apartments, the hotel and a
section of the Conwy Estuary Strategic cycle route alongside the railway line.

To reduce the risk of flooding during severe storms
at high tide the dockland was raised by several
feet. The replacement of the original railway level
crossing with a new continental-style barrier,
incorporating a road traffic light system, and
widening the main road were delayed by two years
when Railtrack i the British railway track owners i
went into administration late in 2001. In an attempt
to overcome this set-back the developer submitted
plans for building an access road to the site from
D e g a n \tyedeach at Marine Crescent in place
of the proposed new level crossing. There was a
public outcry and an action group called HAFOD
(fHands Off Deganwy was formed.

The marina development begins to take shap003
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The controversial plan was dropped when the new railway track owners, Network Rail, installed
the new level crossing in 2004 but, unfortunately, not before several houses had been built on
Deganwy Quay without public road access.

9 The Marina

To transform an old, silted-up dock basin into a luxury marina took two years of extensive
construction work from 2002. The first stage was to install steel sheet piles into the south side
and to the river entrance of the dock creating a cofferdam so that work could be undertaken
regardless of the state of the tide. Around 70,000 tonnes of alluvial silt was excavated from the
floor of the basin and taken away for tipping and a further 160,000 tonnes of sandy gravel was
dredged and used for land reclamation on the north and east sides of the basin on which to build
houses and apartments.

The original sloping dockside wall on the west side of the basin was left in place but
perpendicular limestone facing was built in front of the steel sheeting on the north and east
sides. The south side of the marina was protected by an embankment of random rock extending
from the land nearest the railway line to a point just beyond the river entrance. This was built to
a height just below high water level. A 20 metre wide automatic half-tide gate was installed at
the entrance to retain sea-water in the basin at low tide. Before the marina basin was flooded,
floating pontoons for berthing a total of 165 boats were installed, with lights, and each berth
provided with water and electricity points. The marina can accommodate yachts, cruisers, rigid
inflatable boats and jet skis.

The marina opened in April 2004, followed in August that same year by the offices for controlling
the business operations. The office building also houses modern washrooms and laundry
facilities and a small number of commercial enterprises.

Adjacent to the offices is the boat
fuelling point, a 20 tonne travel
hoist and a tarmac-surfaced hard
standing area for boat storage.

Shortly after its completion the
8 marina was sold by the developer

_ to Bedfordshire-based, Interguide
Investment Holdings Ltd.,, a
company owned by Alan Dugard.
On 30 January 2008 it was
purchased by The Crown Estate
and immediately leased to Quay
Marinas who operate several marinas in the U.K. including Conwy Marina on the opposite bank
of the river.

Two years after acquiring the marina, the Crown Estate felt there was no communal area where
the marina fraternity could gather and socialise. As little land was available for this purpose a
novel solution was found by building out over the marina wall itself. Utilising some of the old
timber supports still in place from the original 19" century loading piers, two adjoining decking
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areas were built alongside the marina office building. Twenty three tons of solid French oak
were used as decking supports to supplement the original timbers.

The decking itself was constructed from a
revolutionary new processed wood called
Kebony, specially imported direct from
Norway. This was chosen as it was a
sustainable alternative to tropical hardwoods
and for its qualities such as hardness,
weather resistance and long life span. The
smaller of the two decking area comprising
78 square metres was built facing east
(across the marina); and the larger one facing
south (up the Conwy Valley) covers 119
square metres and is equipped with a brick-
built gas barbecue area. Both areas are , <
fitted with deck lights, and two spotlights illuminate the barbecue area. The constructlon built by
Thomas Winstanley and Son Ltd. of St Helens, was completed in June 2010 and was named
The Quarterdeck.

The Quarterdeck under construction2010

10 The Residential Properties

The construction of houses and apartments, all with garages, was carried out in three phases.
Work was programmed to begin in November 2001 with all phases expected to be completed by
the end of the following year. Phase one consisted of 13 detached houses built on the estuary
side of the original dock, with fine west-facing views out towards the sea. Building initially
commenced on two houses (humbers 4 and 5) followed by some of the others of phase one, but
none could be occupied until the new railway crossing opened in January 2004. The first
residents of Deganwy Quay were Mr and Mrs Bob Dewhurst who received the keys for number
2 on 27 January 2004. Phases two and three were built on land reclaimed from the north and
east sides of the original dock basin and foundations could not be laid until the marina-side
earthwork was in place. Phase two consisted of 23 apartments in three separate three-storey
blocks known as Brittany, Santos and Moresby, and phase three comprised an assorted group
of 14 apartments (in two blocks known as Auckland and Hamble), 18 town-houses and 3
detached houses. These final two phases were constructed over the years 2003 to 2005,
followed by the roadways, garden areas and the section of the Conwy Estuary cycle track

A modification to the original housing plan was the addition of an extra detached house on
reclaimed land at the southern end of the development. More significantly, a three storey
building originally called The Gatehouse, planned as an extension for hotel leisure facilities, was
given planning permission for a change in use to a block of five apartments and parking spaces.

Work commenced in 2003 but the building was left in an uncompleted state for three years
during which time it was purchased from the developer by Prestigious Living Ltd., a residential
construction company with projects throughout North West England. The Gatehouse was finally
completed in late 2007. It is a striking design featuring two round towers complementing the
rest of the site and, although it does not enjoy the close waterside views of the other properties

and has only car-parking spaces rather than garages, it is fitted out to a very high standard. The
13






